
 
 
 
 
 

JUSTICE SERVICES DEPARTMENT  
VETERAN SERVICES ~ JUSTICE SERVICES 

 

COMMISSIONERS: 
STAN VANDERWERF (CHAIR) 
CAMI BREMER  (VICE-CHAIR) 

HOLLY WILLIAMS 
CARRIE GEITNER  

LONGINOS GONZALEZ, JR. 

 

VETERANS SERVICES 
5850 Championship View, Ste. 130 

Colorado Springs, CO  80922 

JUSTICE SERVICES 
17 N. Spruce Street 

Colorado Springs, CO 80905 

 
Community Corrections Board (CCB) 
March 15, 2022, 12:15 p.m. - 1:45 p.m. 

Meeting Agenda 
 

Regional Development Center, 2nd Floor Hearing Room, 2880 International Circle, Colorado Springs 80910 
Or join virtually via TEAMS: Click here to join the meeting; Email for invitation: dianefrost@elpasoco.com 

Or call in (audio only): 1-719-283-1263   Phone Conference ID: 822 488 371# 
  

Item       Presenter Recommended Action 
 
1. Call Meeting to Order     Chair    
 a)  SOAR Training      Kate Coates  Information                          
          
2. Attendance            Chair   Roll Call  

a) Introduction of members and guests 
b) Requests for excused absences  

3.  Case Review – VRA Statements    Chair    Information 
Tiffany Weaver 
    

4. Case Review – Discussion and Balloting   Chair   Balloting 
  
5. Approval of Minutes               

a) Ratify meeting minutes for February 15 and the      Chair               Vote  
electronic meeting minutes of February 2, 9,  
and 23, 2022.   

  
6. Program Reports                                

a) ComCor, Inc. (CCI)     Mark Wester  Information 
b) Community Alternatives of El Paso County (CAE) Gwen Barlow   Information 

 
7. Monthly Reports  

a) SFY22 Financial Reports     Angel Medina  Information   
b) Unauthorized Absence Report     Angel Medina  Information  
c) Staff Report      Angel Medina  Information 

 
8. Old Business 
 
9. New Business  
 
10.  Case Review - Ballot Results      Chair   Information 
 
11.  Board / Staff Comments 
 
12. Adjournment 
 
 
 

Next meeting date:  Tuesday, April 19, 2022, at 12:15 p.m.  

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_ZGE4NTQ5OTItZGIwNi00OTNhLTlmZGEtOTJhYjIyMzVkOTE2%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2288b0fadb-cf34-47c4-b9ea-139963895820%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%225820b09a-70fe-4199-83f8-9afb2b593155%22%7d


Page 1 
4th Judicial District Community Corrections Board (CCB) 

MINUTES  
February 15, 2022 

Board members: Pat Kelly, Mark Allison, Judge Chad Miller, Reginald Short, Lori Griffith, 
Billie Ratliff, Paul Martinez, Gil Suazo, Judith McCollum, Kirsten 
Swenson, Ryan Graham, Jim Reid, and Rose Roy 

Excused absences: Judge Ann Rotolo and Mike Pitt 

Unexcused absences: None 

Staff present: Daniel Huddleston, Tiffany Weaver, Diane Frost, Angel Medina, Christine 
Burns, and Terry Sample 

Guests present: Chad Dilworth, Angelina Weant, Dustin Long Frances Falk, Mark Wester, 
Sue Kuiper, and Jenner Behan 

1. Pat Kelly, Chair, called the meeting to order at 12:15 p.m.  The Board meeting was held
with Board members attending either virtually or in-person.

a. Study Session:  Colorado State Board of Parole – Mr. Chad Dilworth, Vice-Chair of the
Colorado State Board of Parole (CSBP), presented an overview of the Parole Board’s
procedures.  He discussed standards and guidelines for assessment, evaluation, treatment, and
behavioral monitoring of Colorado’s parolees. The CSPB manages parolees to reduce
recidivism. Mr. Dilworth stated that community corrections provide some stability between
the transition from Prison to Parole.  Mr. Dilworth stated that Parole is looking to improve the
process for notification.  Angel Medina stated that a letter from Parole when they make a
recommendation would be helpful. Mr. Dilworth stated that Parole appreciates the specialized
programming that is available through vendors to include Intensive Residential Treatment
(IRT), Residential Dual Diagnosis Treatment (RDDT), and Sex Offender Treatment (CRP).

2. Attendance:  The Board Chair called roll.  Future excused absences were requested by Pat
Kelly for March 15, 2022.

3. Case Review - VRA Statements:  Registered victims in proposed client cases (Joseph
Nickerson, Robert Allen, and Simone Moore) addressed the board.

4. Case Review:  Discussion and Balloting:  Chair Pat Kelly called for a case discussion
regarding Mr. Robert Allen. Lori Griffith clarified the plea agreement for Mr. Robert Allen.
Mr. Allen’s plea agreement was not completely stated, and Mr. Allen wanted an appeal and
the PSI indicated it was a stipulated probation sentence that he is receiving and an added count
that is a child abuse case which the defendant is looking at an open sentence which would
include DOC community corrections or probation and that is why community correction screen
was requested.  The child abuse is a two to eight years DOC sentence open to probation and
community correction, if the court sentences to DOC for the child abuse count, Mr. Allen
would receive the DOC sentence and he would receive supervised probation once on parole
for the child abuse. Balloting was opened.

2



Page 2 
4th Judicial District Community Corrections Board (CCB) 

MINUTES  
February 15, 2022 

5. Approval of the Minutes:  Jim Reid moved to approve the meeting minutes for January
18, 2022, and the electronic meeting minutes for January 5, 12, and 26, 2022.  Kirsten
Swenson seconded.  The motion passed unanimously by roll call vote.

6. Program Reports:

ComCor, Inc. (CCI):  Mark Wester reported for CCI.  Mr. Wester stated for January 2022 
they had 148 Diversion; 56 Transition; 26 Division Out-of-District; 64 Non-Residential; 
24 Intensive Residential Treatment (IRT), 10 Residential Dual Diagnosis (RDDT), 18 
Community Responsibility Program (CRP), eight Non-CRP (sex offenders that receive 
therapy off-campus).  He stated they referred 140 criteria cases. Mr. Wester reported CCI 
collected $6,438.69 in child support and $5,054.83 in restitution.  The total assessed in 
restitution across all the clients in CCI is in excess of three million dollars that is owed. 
Mr. Wester stated that CCI had 36 admissions of which 16 were Diversion, six Transition, 
three Condition of Parole (COP), six Condition of Probation (COPr), and five transitions 
to non-residential status. He stated that they had 11 IRT; one RDDT; and three CRP 
admissions.  Terminations for January were a total of 46 which includes about 48.6% 
successful completion of a total of 17, two clients that changed status 5.7 % which means 
the client for example transferred to IRT or was a reject after accept (RAA), about 45.7% 
negative termination; 12 escapes 34.4%; 2 house/technical violations; and 2 committed 
new crimes.  Mr. Wester stated that there are 10 open positions - three in each security in 
case management and four in treatment staff and they continue to be aggressive in 
recruitment efforts. He stated CCI has implemented a pay increase for majority of the staff 
in January. Mr. Wester stated the employment rate is 76%, which is up 1% from last month; 
the regression rate is 5.7% roughly half from last month; the positive UAs rate is 7.8%.  
CCI has provided 7 Habits of Highly Effective People/7 Habits on the Inside Instructor 
Training for case management to enhance key principles of effectiveness within their field.  
The training also certified case management as instructors for 7 Habits, which would assist 
clients to effectively instill habits that provide pro-social change.  CCI has implemented a 
night class based on client requests.  Mr. Wester discussed the Pace Audit regarding 
Building 3950 renovation – began to empty several rooms at the back of the facility to 
begin cleaning and repairs.  He discussed the Core Audit, in which he states they have 
contracted with a new urinalysis testing company to have the capacity to test for a wide 
range of commonly abused drugs such as fentanyl and prescription medications such as 
gabapentin.  Mr. Wester mentioned that they are implementing 3, 10-hour shifts for 
technical staff with 2-hour overlaps to allow for more pro-social engagement and better 
detect incidents that may have occurred in the facilities. 

a. Community Alternatives of El Paso County (CAE):  Gwen Barlow reported for CAE.
She stated that they had 159 clients of which 90 were Transition, 69 Diversion and 46 Non-
Residential.  She stated that CAE collected $37,930 in subsistence and $5,700 in restitution.
Mrs. Barlow stated for admissions that there were 11 diversion clients, 9 transition and 5
diversion clients that transition over to non-residential status.  For terminations for January

3



Page 3 
4th Judicial District Community Corrections Board (CCB) 

MINUTES  
February 15, 2022 

were a total successful: nine Diversion; five Non-Residential going out; nine Transition; 
four Non-Residential; negative terminations: seven Diversion; eight Transition; eight 
escapes. Mrs. Gwen stated for the escapes the trend they saw was substance abuse issues; 
increase pat searches; locker searches; room searches and finding substances on clients and 
rather the clients waiting for Colorado Springs Police Department (CSPD) to process the 
clients take off running.  Mrs. Barlow stated for January CAE experienced a major outbreak 
of COVID-19 with clients and staff.  There were 15 Diversion clients and 28 Transition 
clients that tested positive.  CAE worked collaboratively with local and state health 
departments for testing and any additional assistance that CAE needs.  CAE is doing 
weekly testing and just performed COVID testing on Monday and waiting on results.  Due 
to COVID, there has been an increase in drug use and overdose during the lockdown.  There 
were four overdoses in January.  Mrs. Barlow applauses her staff on their quick responds 
by CPR and Narcan before AMR and fire arrives to assist them. For the increase of drugs 
and overdoses at the facility, CAE brought in a K9 vendor to target specific areas where 
the clients are housed and to eliminate the drug use.  She stated that CAE would be working 
with the K9 vendor to make the dog search a regular monthly operation.  Currently, there 
is one scheduled for this month.  CAE is collaborating with the K9 vendor to increase the 
dog search to twice to three times a month.  She stated that case managers have evaluated 
and assessed the clients to see if the clients are receiving appropriate treatment. Lori 
Griffith had a question regarding the status of filling the Director position.  Mrs. Barlow 
stated GEO is currently reviewing applicants for the Director position and will begin 
interviews. 

Reginald Short left the meeting at 12:45 pm. 

7. Monthly Reports:

a. SFY22 Financial Report:  Angel Medina reported the current expected expenditure for
SFY22; CAE is at 42.25%, representing 16.08% underspent, and that ComCor, Inc. is at
55.24%, representing 3.09% underspent.

b. Unauthorized Absence Report:  Angel Medina reported that there is a new report format;
that it presents a fair picture; and he thanked Diane Frost for her collaboration with DCJ to
extract the information from CCIB. He stated that for the end of January 2022, that CAE
had 15 negative termination and 16 successful terminations. CCI had 18 negative
terminations; 21 positive terminations; and 12 neutral terminations. The successful
termination rate for CAE is 52% and CCI is 35%.  He stated that CAE had 8 escapes and
CCI had 11 escapes.  Angel stated that Mr. Webster reported 12 escapes and we are
constantly reviewing data input and cross-referencing data.

c. Staff Report:

Mr. Medina shared with the Board that increased drug use is a nationwide concern and that
he is collaborating with DJC and parole to offer additional resources to the vendors.

4



Page 4 
4th Judicial District Community Corrections Board (CCB) 

MINUTES  
February 15, 2022 

The Justice Services Department relocated to 17 N. Spruce in Colorado Springs in a 
shared building with Colorado State University Extension; that he participated with DCJ 
on performance-based contracting (PBC); that DCJ submitted their PBC report to the 
legislature; that the vendor report reflects the metrics adopted under PACE and Core 
Security Audit standards; and discussed the Incident Notification Process.  Mr. Medina 
shared Community Corrections Standard CC 020:  The types of incidents regarding 
clients and/or staff members that require written notification to referral and oversight 
agencies. 

8. Old Business: None

9. New Business:

a. Election of Board Chair and Vice Chair – Pursuant to Board by-laws, the Chair and
Vice-Chair election was held for terms to run from March 2022 through February 2023.

Lori Griffith motioned Rose Roy as the Community Corrections Board Chair. Gil Suazo 
seconded.  Kirsten Swenson motioned Jim Reid as Community Corrections Board Chair and 
Ryan Graham seconded.  By roll call vote Rose Roy was elected as the Community 
Corrections Board Chair.  

Pat Kelly asked for nominations for Vice-Chair. 

Rose Roy motioned Lori Griffith as the Community Corrections Board Vice-Chair. Gil 
Suazo seconded. By roll call vote, the motion passed unanimously.  

b. Angel Medina shared that the 4th Judicial District is the second-largest district in
Colorado for board processing and referrals; that Adams County is first; that the Board
approval rate for transition clients was at 69% and 74% for Diversion clients; 65% for
Condition of Parole Referrals; that these numbers provide a sense of the activity of the
Board with the various populations.

10. Case Review – Ballot Results:  Results of the ballot were read.

11. Board/Staff Comments:  Angel Medina and Board members thanked Judge Kelly for his
service to the community and the Community Corrections Board and provided him with a
Justice Services excellence coin.

12. Adjournment:  Chair Pat Kelly adjourned the meeting at 1:32 p.m.

5



Page 5 
4th Judicial District Community Corrections Board (CCB) 

MINUTES  
February 15, 2022 

Respectfully submitted, 

____________________________________________________________ 
Angel Medina, Community Corrections Program Manager 

Confirmed: 

____________________________________________________________ 
Pat Kelly, Chair 
El Paso County Community Corrections Board 

6



Ballot of February 15, 2022

MANDATORY BOARD REVIEW

El Paso County Community Corrections Board

Pursuant to Section D (4e) of the OFFENDER PLACEMENT REVIEW PROCEDURES adopted by 
the El Paso County Community Corrections Board on July 25, 1997 and amended on February 12, 
2020, the results of the ballot are reported to and ratified by the El Paso County Community 
Corrections Board on March 15, 2022.

CCD #Offender Name ProviderJD

  Accept
Referral IRT Approve Reject AbstWRP

22-0152WEDDLE, NEPOLION CCI4thD 7 5 1

22-0154GARRETT, KYON CCI4thD 8 4 1

22-0156RICO, NATHAN CCI11thD 7 5 1

22-0158CABRERA, ELEAZAR CCI4thD 7 5 1

22-0159GONZALES, VANESSA D CCIT 8 4 1

22-0160WELCH, CANDICE S CCIT 10 2 1

22-0161MAESTAS, GABRIEL CAET 10 2 1

CCD #Offender Name ProviderJD

  Pulled
Referral IRT Approve Reject AbstWRP

22-0167NAVARES, BRANDON P ISPI 0 0 0

7



Ballot of February 15, 2022

MANDATORY BOARD REVIEW

El Paso County Community Corrections Board

Pursuant to Section D (4e) of the OFFENDER PLACEMENT REVIEW PROCEDURES adopted by 
the El Paso County Community Corrections Board on July 25, 1997 and amended on February 12, 
2020, the results of the ballot are reported to and ratified by the El Paso County Community 
Corrections Board on March 15, 2022.

CCD #Offender Name ProviderJD

  Reject
Referral IRT Approve Reject AbstWRP

22-0151BALKHAM, CHRISTIAN CAE4thD 3 9 1

22-0153TILSON, BRIANNA CAE4thD 4 8 1

22-0155CIARCIA, JERRY CCI4thD 3 8 2

22-0157SPRAGUE, ISIAH CCI10thD 6 6 1

22-0162MCNULTY, CHRISTOPHER A CAET 1 10 2

22-0163IBARRA, JOSE CCIT 4 8 1

22-0164CASTOPHNEY, CHRISTIAN J CAET 5 7 1

22-0165LEONARD, ALEXANDER G CAET 3 9 1

22-0166LUCAS, CRYSTAL N CAET 6 6 1

22-0168JOHNSON, NICHOLAS CAE4thD 1 10 1

22-0169WARD, KYLIE CAE4thD 2 9 1

22-0170NICKERSON, JOSEPH CCI4thD 1 10 1

22-0171HARRIS, PHILIP CAE4thD 2 9 1

22-0172ALLEN, ROBERT CCI4thD 2 9 1

22-0173TAYLOR, ERIC CCI4thD 4 7 1

22-0174BAILEY, JOEY A CAE4thD 4 7 1

22-0175MOORE, SIMONE CAE4thD 2 9 1

CAE = Community Alternatives of El Paso County

CCI = ComCor, Inc.

D = Diversion Residential and NonResidential

C = Condition of Parole with or without IRT

Legend:

T = Transition with or without IRT

8



Page 1 
El Paso County Community Corrections Board 

Electronic Screening Minutes  
February 2, 2022 

Staff present: Daniel Huddleston 
Others present: Tiffany Weaver 

The meeting was called to order at 1:00 p.m. 

1. Ballots:    Daniel Huddleston tabulated ballots.

Meeting was adjourned at 1:45 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

_________________________________ 
Daniel Huddleston 
Community Corrections Specialist 
Community Outreach Division  

Confirmed: 

________________________________ 
Pat Kelly, Chair 
El Paso County Community Corrections Board 

9



Ballot of February 02, 2022
MANDATORY BOARD REVIEW

El Paso County Community Corrections Board

Pursuant to Section D (4e) of the OFFENDER PLACEMENT REVIEW PROCEDURES adopted by 
the El Paso County Community Corrections Board on July 25, 1997 and amended on February 12, 
2020, the results of the ballot are reported to and ratified by the El Paso County Community 
Corrections Board on February 15, 2022.

CCD #Offender Name ProviderJD
  Accept

Referral IRT Approve Reject AbstWRP
22-0101GURLEY, LEVI CCI4thD 7 6 1

22-0102CASE, DALTON CAE4thD 10 3 1

22-0103MOLL, KIM CCI4thD 11 2 1

22-0104MADRID, PATRICK CCI4thD 7 6 1

22-0105WALDEN, DOMINIC IRTP 11 2 1

22-0109INACIO, NATHAN CCI4thD 9 4 1

22-0110HERNANDEZ, CARIDEL CAE4thD 12 1 1

22-0112BROWN, CHRISTOPHER L CAET 8 5 1

22-0117OWASBY, JENNY S CCIT 10 3 1

22-0122MAXFIELD, PATRICK M CAET 9 4 1

22-0124MARTINEZ, VINCENT A CCIT 8 5 1

CCD #Offender Name ProviderJD
  Reject

Referral IRT Approve Reject AbstWRP
22-0106DOMINGUEZ-NUNEZ, ANGELICA CAE4thD 6 7 1

22-0107VARGAS, CHRISTOPHER CAE4thD 4 9 1

22-0108COOK, JUSTIN CAE4thD 3 10 1

22-0111WILLIAMS, MYKEL CAE4thD 3 10 1

22-0113RHINEHEIMER, JAMES E CAET 2 11 1

22-0114CROWDER, ANTIVIUS L CAET 2 11 1

22-0115BELCHER, TERRY CAET 6 7 1

22-0116BELL, BRANDON C CCIT 5 8 1

22-0118BROCKMANN, ZACHARY J CAET 4 8 2

22-0119GAYMON, JORDAN M CAET 6 7 1

22-0120SANLUIS, CHRISTOPHER J CAET 5 8 1

22-0121CLAYTON, DWAYNE L CAET 1 12 1

22-0123BILLINGER, MICHAEL A CCIT 6 7 1

22-0125RIMPSON, EMMITT CCIC 4 8 2

10



Page 1 
El Paso County Community Corrections Board 

Electronic Screening Minutes  
February 9, 2022 

Staff present: Daniel Huddleston 
Others present: Tiffany Weaver 

The meeting was called to order at 1:00 p.m. 

1. Ballots:    Daniel Huddleston tabulated ballots.

Meeting was adjourned at 1:20 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

_________________________________ 
Daniel Huddleston 
Community Corrections Specialist 
Community Outreach Division  

Confirmed: 

________________________________ 
Pat Kelly, Chair 
El Paso County Community Corrections Board 

11



Ballot of February 09, 2022

MANDATORY BOARD REVIEW

El Paso County Community Corrections Board

Pursuant to Section D (4e) of the OFFENDER PLACEMENT REVIEW PROCEDURES adopted by 
the El Paso County Community Corrections Board on July 25, 1997 and amended on February 12, 
2020, the results of the ballot are reported to and ratified by the El Paso County Community 
Corrections Board on February 15, 2022.

CCD #Offender Name ProviderJD

  Accept
Referral IRT Approve Reject AbstWRP

22-0126PECORARO, SHELBY CCI4thD 9 4 1

22-0130MEYER, JERRY CCI4thD 8 5 1

22-0133HARVISON, CORWIN CAE4thD 8 5 1

22-0134BELTRAN, OSWALDO CCI4thD 8 5 1

22-0138BEEMER, AARON J CCIT 8 4 2

22-0144MEREDITH, MARY L CAET 11 2 1

22-0146QUIROVA, WILLIAM J CCIT 8 5 1

22-0149DAVIS, RIO CAET 11 2 1

CCD #Offender Name ProviderJD

  Reject
Referral IRT Approve Reject AbstWRP

22-0127PETERSON, AMBER CAE4thD 5 8 1

22-0128HENDRICKS, NATALIE CAE4thD 4 9 1

22-0129FUTRELL, RAEKWON CCI4thD 6 7 1

22-0131VALDEZ-MUNOZ, SALOMON CAE4thD 6 7 1

22-0132MCCOON, CODY CAE4thD 3 10 1

22-0135DITTMAN, LINNEA CAE4thD 3 10 1

22-0136HOBER, STEVEN CAE4thD 1 12 1

22-0137TARVER, DESMOND CCI4thD 2 11 1

22-0139SAUNDERS, JACOB A CCIT 3 10 1

22-0140PARKER, RYAN E CCIT 4 9 1

22-0141MOODY, CHRISTOPHER L CAET 0 12 1

22-0142RAMON, ISAIAH CCIT 4 9 1

22-0143GREENE, JONATHAN D CAET 2 10 2

22-0145WHITAKER, MARC R CCIT 6 7 1

22-0147TANKERSLEY, JEREMIAH J CCIT 4 8 2

22-0148RICHARDSON, SIDNEY E CAET 4 9 1

22-0150PICKETT, WILLIAM N CAET 4 8 2

12



Page 1 
El Paso County Community Corrections Board 

Electronic Screening Minutes  
February 23, 2022 

Staff present: Daniel Huddleston 
Others present: Tiffany Weaver 

The meeting was called to order at 1:00 p.m. 

1. Ballots:    Daniel Huddleston tabulated ballots.

Meeting was adjourned at 1:15 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

_________________________________ 
Daniel Huddleston 
Community Corrections Specialist 
Community Outreach Division  

Confirmed: 

________________________________ 
Pat Kelly, Chair 
El Paso County Community Corrections Board 

13



Ballot of February 23, 2022

MANDATORY BOARD REVIEW

El Paso County Community Corrections Board

Pursuant to Section D (4e) of the OFFENDER PLACEMENT REVIEW PROCEDURES adopted by 
the El Paso County Community Corrections Board on July 25, 1997 and amended on February 12, 
2020, the results of the ballot are reported to and ratified by the El Paso County Community 
Corrections Board on March 15, 2022.

CCD #Offender Name ProviderJD

  Accept
Referral IRT Approve Reject AbstWRP

22-0176HOFMANN, JUSTIN CCI4thD 7 6 1

22-0178POL-ALPIZAR, AMADO CCI4thD 13 0 1

22-0179BEBOUT, CHASE CAE4thD 11 2 1

22-0181CIPRANI, SHANNON CAE4thD 9 4 1

22-0184HIDALGO-ABAD, RENE A CAET 8 5 1

22-0185PONCE, MIGUEL A CAET 8 4 2

22-0189FLORES, THOMAS CAET 7 6 1

22-0193STREED, DAVID W CCIT 11 2 1

22-0197ONEILL, DENNIS F CCIT 7 6 1

22--0198RODARMEL, JUSTIN CAET 7 6 1

22-0199MADISON, KELIA J CAET 9 4 1

CCD #Offender Name ProviderJD

  Reject
Referral IRT Approve Reject AbstWRP

22-0177GUINN, DUSTIN CAE4thD 5 8 1

22-0180CALIP, JORDAN CCI4thD 3 10 1

22-0182ORTIVEZ-MARTINEZ, LEVI E CAE4thD 3 10 1

22-0183RANNILA, JOHN L CAET 3 10 1

22-0186CALDWELL, CHRISTOPHER M CCIT 6 7 1

22-0187DIECKOW, ASHLEY M CCIT 5 8 1

22-0188MOSELY, COREY L CCIT 1 11 2

22-0190ALMANZAR, JOSE R CCIT 3 10 1

22-0191HERNANDEZ, MIGUEL P CAET 5 8 1

22-0192ARELLANO, STEPHEN J CAET 4 9 1

22-0194VLACH, ARICA L CCIT 1 11 2

22-0195LAW, THOMAS CCIT 5 8 1

22-0196DAHN, KRISTOPHER CCIT 1 11 2

22-0200REYES, DANNY C CAET 4 9 1

14



Community Corrections Board   

Agenda Item Summary  

Agenda Item Title:  Program Report / ComCor, Inc. (CCI) 

Agenda Date:  March 15, 2022 

Agenda Item Number:  6-a

Presenter:   Mark Wester, Director, CCI 

Information: X 

Endorsement:   

Background Information: 

Program to provide insight and information on facility, demographics, admissions and 
terminations, facility staffing, activity, and other notable information. 

Recommended Motion: 
N/A 

15



Vendor ComCor Month February YEAR 2022 Capacity: 352
DCJ Allocation: 254

Diversion: 146 IRT: 34
Diversion Out of 
District: 

20 Total Financial Fees Total

Transition: 59 RDDT: 10 Average Census 262 Subsistence $113,007.88
Condition of Parole:  7 CRP: 23 Child Support $6,492.03
Condition of Probation:  2 Non CRP SO: 12 Restitution $6,168.96
Non‐Residential: 54 Criteria Cases: 150

Diversion Transition
Condition of 

Parole
Condition of 
Probation

 Non‐
Residential:

Intensive 
Residential 

Treatment (IRT)

Residential Dual 
Diagnosis (RDDT)

Community 
Responsibility 
Program (CRP)

Total

Total 7 6 3 5 2 14 0 4 41

Diversion Transition
Condition of 

Parole
Condition of 
Probation

 Non‐
Residential:

Total
Intensive Residential 
Treatment (IRT)

Residential Dual 
Diagnosis (RDDT)

Community 
Responsibility 
Program (CRP)

Successful 8 6 1 0 7 26 4 0 0
Negative 7 4 0 2 1 17 3 0 0
Total 15 10 1 2 8 43 7 0 0

Termination Reasons Total Percentage Staffing
Budgeted 
FTE's

New Hires Terminated Vacant FTE Total

Successful Program  26 60.5% Security 55 3 3 5 66

Client Status Change ‐ 
(Transfer to Another CC, Transfer 
to IRT, Reject After Accept.. ‐ See 
CCIB)

13 NA
Case 

Management
25 0 0 4 29

Negative 17 Treatment Staff 8 0 0 4 12

Escape 13 30.2% Admn 12 0 0 0 12
House/Technical 
Violations

7 16.3%
Support Staff 

(Other)
13 0 0 2 15

Committed New Crime ‐
During Placement

1 2.3% Non‐Residential 1 0 0 0 1

Warrant/Pending Crime ‐ 
Prior to Placement

0 0.0%

Specialized TreatmentADMISSIONS 

Specialized TreatmentTERMINATIONS

FACILITY STAFFINGPROGRAM TERMINATIONS

ComCor, INC. (CCI) VENDOR REPORT 

FINANCIAL FEESFACILITY DEMOGRAPHICS

16



Type Diverson Transition COPr COP Total   Type
Current Month 

Rate
Previous Month 

Rate
New Criminal  Offense 1 0 0 0 1 Employment Rate 71.1% 76.0%
Assault  0 0 0 0 0 Regression Rate 42.0% 5.7%
Fighting 0 0 0 0 0 UA Positive Rate 4.9% 7.8%

0 0 0 0 0
Positive Urinalysis 48 9 2 5 64 Total/Positive 1500/74 1500/117

Escape 5 3 0 4 12 Type
Current Month 

Count
Previous Month 

Count

Sanctions 30 20 1 4 55 Client Grievances 9 14

Medical Emergency 2 0 1 3 6 Citizen Complaints 0 0

2 0 0 0 2 IRT Waitlist 3 0

Death 0 0 0 0 0 Dual Supervision 0 1
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
88 32 4 16 140

Referrals Approved Denied Referrals Approved Denied Total Referrals
29 20 9 14 12 2 43

Referrals Approved Denied Referrals Approved Denied Total Referrals
26 11 15 6 6 0 32

DATE

Health Related Outbreak (Bed Bugs, COVID, FLU, 
etc.)

Jenner Behan 3/9/2022
Director Signature/Designee

Use of Force
TOTAL

PREA Allegation

Unauthorized Absence:        
Escape ‐ Confirmed               
Less than 2 hours ‐ Late 
return

PROGRAM UPDATENOTIFICATIONS & INCIDENT/CRITICAL REPORTS

Diversion Criteria Referrals Diversion Auto Referrals

Transition Criteria Referrals Transition Auto Referrals

Raw UA DataPossession of Dangerous Drugs

17



STAFF DEVELOPMENT:

PROGRAM 
DEVELOPMENT: 

3950 RENOVATION:

CS‐010:  Random 
Headcouts & Facility 
Walkthroughs

CS‐042:  Job Search

CS‐060:  Substance 
Testing Process

OMA‐020:  Milieu 
Management

Additional Comments:

We continue to work with our vocational case manager, who assists clients with resume’s, interview guidance and open positions. She continues to create and 
maintain relationships with local businesses, who hire our clients. 

•We have contracted with a urinalysis testing company to have the capacity to test for a wide range of commonly abuse drugs such as fentanyl and prescription
medications such as gabapentin.  This allows us to perform nearly 1600 UA’s accurately a month
•Fentanyl test strips are being implemented as an evidence‐based harm reduction strategy (This is not to condone drug use, as UA’s will still catch drug use, it’s
to show ComCor holds safety as a top priority.)
 •We are looking researching implementa on of ocular scanning for drug detec on.

•We have implemented 3, 10‐hour shifts for technical staff with 2‐hour overlaps to allow for more pro‐social engagement and to better detect incidents that 
may have occurred in the facilities. This also allows for more overseen client behavior and recreation.

Security staff are conducting 6 headcounts on each shift to exceed the DCJ standard requirement of 4 checks during each shift.  This includes a shadowing phase 
for new hires to learn proper techniques for performing these functions, creating consistency amongst staff

• Redeveloped new hire training to include more hands on training with the opportunity to practice the skills learned prior to being released to a facility. Facility
managers are taking a greater role in new hire training as well.  We are providing a full week of training and a shadowing period for consistant performance.

•Provided 7 Habits of Highly Effective People/7 Habits on the Inside Instructor Training for case management to enhance key principles of effectiveness within
their field. This training also certified case management as instructors for 7 Habits on the inside, which will assist clients to effectively instill habits that provide
pro‐social change. After positive comments and client meetings, we have also implemented a night class based on client requests.

2. Strategy:  Review and enhance level system with measurable and objective components to increase transparency and consistency of client reinforcement and progression.
(Developing and utilizing a level system (5‐1) with measurable components creates transparency and consistency in client movement and reinforcement through earned
privileges)

•We have continued to refine our Program Matrix process to maintain a high level of transparency and fidelity to the model created by DCJ.
•We have included new policy reviews that include clients, allowing ComCor to have more transparency with clients and explain DCJ standards behind decision
making.
•Awareness posters on lethal doses of fentanyl have been placed inside of the facilities
•Narcan is being placed throughout the facilities, along with client education on signs of overdose to increase probability of overdose intervention.

We have begun to empty several rooms at the back of the facility to begin cleaning and repairs.  We have designated our empty space at 3820 N. Nevada to 
serve as a workout room for all clients, eliminating the need to have weight equipment at the 3950 facility.  Comcor has reviewed scope and architectural 
drawings with our architect. We have defined a revised scope of approximaly $1M in improvements planned over the next year. 

CORE Security Audit

1. Strategy:  Enhance case management ranks and training to improve client skill training and outcomes. SKILL TRAIN ‐ FACTOR 4

PACE Audit

18



Grievances

Core Related
 •1 about staff misplacing medica on.  In conversa on with client real issue is staff were perceived as being rude as staff is becoming more consistent with ac ons. This was staff following
policy on medications
 •1 issue with food available before going to work – In conversa on with client real issue is staff were perceived as being rude as staff is becoming more consistent with ac ons.
 •2 about lack of toilet paper and lack of concern from tech staff to resolve issue. Client Support Manger is addressing the lack of empathy and concern by tech staff
 •1 about room search and items confiscate as contraband.  Went over contraband with client items were listed contraband. Staff was following ComCor policy. 
 •1 Staff Was disrespec ul during Drop off.  In speaking with client staff was forceful direc on that there was to be no contact during drop off. This is a ComCor policy staff was following.

Pace Related
 •1 about Case manager not pu ng in passes. In discussion it was a pass with 24 hours’ no ce which is outside of policy. CM held client accountable when they were not to get personal
passes.

19



Community Corrections Board   

Agenda Item Summary  

Agenda Item Title: Program Report / Community Alternatives of El Paso 
County (CAE) 

Agenda Date:  March 15, 2022 

Agenda Item Number: 6-b

Presenter:   Gwen Barlow, Interim Facility Director, CAE 

Information:  X 

Endorsement:   

Background Information: 

Program to provide insight and information on facility, demographics, admissions and 
terminations, facility staffing, activity, and other notable information. 

Recommended Motion: 

N/A 

20



Vendor CAE Month Feb YEAR 2022 Capacity: 170
DCJ Allocation: 237

Diversion: 69 IRT: 0
Diversion Out of 
District: 

4 Total Financial Fees Total

Transition: 99 RDDT: 0 Subsistence 39,276.16
Condition of Parole:  0 CRP: 0 Child Support 0.00
Condition of Probation:  0 Non CRP SO: 7 Restitution 9,086.80
Non‐Residential: 46 Criteria Cases: 95

Diversion Transition
Condition of 

Parole
Condition of 
Probation

 Non‐
Residential:

Intensive 
Residential 

Treatment (IRT)

Residential Dual 
Diagnosis (RDDT)

Community 
Responsibility 
Program (CRP)

Total

Total 15 27 0 0 5 ‐ ‐ ‐ 47

Diversion Transition
Condition of 

Parole
Condition of 
Probation

 Non‐
Residential:

Total
Intensive Residential 
Treatment (IRT)

Residential Dual 
Diagnosis (RDDT)

Community 
Responsibility 
Program (CRP)

Successful 6 10 0 0 1 17 ‐ ‐ ‐
Negative 9 8 0 0 2 19 ‐ ‐ ‐
Total 15 18 0 0 3 36 0 0 0

Termination Reasons Total Percentage Staffing
Budgeted 
FTE's

New Hires Terminated Vacant FTE Total

Successful Program  17 47.2% Security 24 4 0 1 29

Client Status Change ‐ 
(Transfer to Another CC, Transfer to 
IRT, Reject After Accept.. ‐ See CCIB)

4 NA Case Management 10 2 2 0 14

Negative 19 52.8% Treatment Staff 0 0 0 0 0

Escape 12 33.3% Admn 6 0 0 0 6

House/Technical Violations 4 11.1%
Support Staff 

(Other)
7 0 0 0 7

Committed New Crime ‐
During Placement

2 5.6% Non‐Residential 0 0 0 0 0

Warrant/Pending Crime ‐ 
Prior to Placement

0 0.0%

COMMUNITY ALTERNATIVE OF EL PASO COUNTY (CAE) VENDOR REPORT 

FINANCIAL FEESFACILITY DEMOGRAPHICS

Specialized TreatmentADMISSIONS 

Specialized TreatmentTERMINATIONS

FACILITY STAFFINGPROGRAM TERMINATIONS

21



Type Diverson Transition COPr COP Total   Type Current Month Rate
Previous Month 

Rate
New Criminal  Offense 0 1 0 0 1 Employment Rate 78.4% 79.4%
Assault  0 0 0 0 0 Regression Rate 8.5% 3.6%
Fighting 0 0 0 0 0 UA Positive Rate 5.9% 10.0%

6 4 0 0 10
Positive Urinalysis 16 13 0 0 29 Total/Positive 1500/150 1500/150

Escape 8 3 0 0 11 Type
Current Month 

Count
Previous  Month 

Count

Sanctions 4 7 0 0 11 Client Grievances 0 0

Medical Emergency 2 0 0 0 2 Citizen Complaints 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 Dual Supervision 0 0

Death 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
36 28 0 0 64

Referrals Approved Denied Referrals Approved Denied Total Referrals
23 22 1 9 7 2 32

Referrals Approved Denied Referrals Approved Denied Total Referrals
23 23 0 6 6 0 29

Diversion Criteria Referrals Diversion Auto Referrals

Transition Criteria Referrals Transition Auto Referrals

Raw UA DataPossession of Dangerous Drugs

DATE

Health Related Outbreak (Bed Bugs, COVID, FLU, 
etc.)

Director Signature/Designee

Unauthorized Absence:         
Escape ‐ Confirmed
Less than 2 hours ‐ Late 
return

Use of Force
TOTAL

PREA Allegation

Gwen Barlow 3/10/2022

PROGRAM UPDATENOTIFICATIONS & INCIDENT/CRITICAL REPORTS

22



Fidelity Specialist and Case 
Manager Supervisor to measure 
staff progress via observation 
and auditing of case plans.

Fidelity Specialist and Case 
Manager Supervisor to measure 
staff progress via observation 
and auditing of case plans.

Search and Contraband Training 
for staff: Scheduled and 
Completed Training *CS‐30 
Contraband
*CS Substance Use Monitoring
Drug Interdiction Events and 
Outcomes: Security Manager 
and Fidelity Specialist 
observations, audits, findings 
and actions taken.
*CS Client Monitoring : Random 
off‐site monitoring of job search,
work, pass and furlough activity
CS* 50 Recording Authorized 
Absences
*Client Supervision ‐  CS Facility 
Checks
Fidelity Specialist and Case 
Manager Supervisor 
observations, audits, and actions 
taken.

Additional Comments:

Training is still ongoing, and security staff has a designated area for completing work whereabouts utilizing facililty phones.  As well as Case management staff are using a team 
approach to complete random off‐site visits for verification.

Case Manager Supervisor had the opportunity to review the newest Case Manager files. Notes for corrections have been given, and a follow up in March is scheduled.  Case 
Managers are sharing their case plans with other co‐workers to review and recieve feedback. These were completed and notes were given to the case managers for corrections.  
Weekly meetings are being conducted with case management staff with case plan coaching as a reoccuring topic.  Case management training was conducted on monthly 
employment crons and the importance of proper and timely entry. 2 new Case Managers completed SOA‐R and Progression Matrix training.

Skill Development with Directed Practice: Staff to demonstrate milieu management for effective role modeling and responsivity. 

During management rounds, both Security and Case management staff were observed having meaningful contacts with the resident population.  Staff were engaged in conversations 
that were both empowering and meaningful.

An audit was conducted of the UA's, and numbers neeed to be adjusted for many of the new residents that came into the program. On January 14, 2022, a K9 Search was conducted 
from the onset on 3 overdoses in Serenity and Tranquilty bays. The K9 only searched those areas from where the overdoses had occurred. On January 25, 2022, the SM and FS 
conducted a spot audit and actively observed 20 resident. Of the 20 files reveiwed, 2 were found incomplete with information and were corrected and staff were given additional 
direction. Observation of substance testing was accurate and based on individual LSI consistent with the standard.  

CORE Security Audit
Senior Secuirty staff are taking the newer staff with them when conducting room/bunk searches, to show them what to look for, and how to leave items. Security staff had found lots 
of items for the month of February. Search and contraband training  has been scheduled for 12/20/21, 01/03/22 and 01/06/22.  Policies and procedures are in place; the focus for 
training and evaluation will be on the process and documenting appropriately. 

Areas of Focus: STAFF DEVELOPMENT:SD‐070, SD‐090 and SD‐100 Train all staff in the areas of MI/SOA‐R/Staff Impact and Progression Matrix

PACE Audit

23



Community Corrections Board   

Agenda Item Summary  

Agenda Item Title:  SFY22 Financial Report 

Agenda Date:  March 15, 2022 

Agenda Item Number: 7-a

Presenter:  Angel Medina. Community Corrections Program Manager 

Information: X 

Endorsement:   

Background Information: 

Pursuant to Article III Section 5, of the El Paso County Community Corrections Board 
(CCB) By-Laws, the Board is responsible for monitoring and overseeing compliance with 
state and local standards. To ensure fiscal responsibility of the local contracts, the Board 
has requested a monthly financial report that explains all expenditures, by service type, 
for the local service providers.  

The attached is the CAE & ComCor, Inc. Financial Report for the month of February 
2022. 

Recommended Motion: 

N/A 

24



Feb-22
COMCOR, INC. (CCI)

Total SFY22 Contract

5,100,152.54$            
TOTAL YTD
Expenditure

% Contract
Expended

Residential 4,288,472.60$            (2,773,189.34)$        54.37%
Condition of Probation IRT 269,151.00$               (73,518.78)$             1.44%
Non-Residential 115,294.38$               (99,382.95)$             1.95%
Correctional Treatment 158,500.00$               (52,212.10)$             1.02%
Facility Payment 268,734.56$               (134,367.28)$           2.63%

Total YTD Expenditure (3,132,670.45)$        61.42%

Percent Actual Expended
Expected YTD Per Contract 66.67%
Percent Under/Over (-) 5.24%

Total Balance in Contract 1,967,482.09$         

Expected YTD Expenditures Per 
Contract

Actual YTD 
Expenditure

Actual YTD $                  
Under / (Over)   

Against Expected

 % Under /     
Over (-) 
against 

expected 
2,858,981.73$  2,773,189.34$             85,792.39$              3.00% Inmate Housing

179,434.00$  73,518.78$                   105,915.22$            59.03% Cond. Of Probation IRT
76,862.92$  99,382.95$                   (22,520.03)$             -29.30% Non-Residential

105,666.67$  52,212.10$                   53,454.57$              50.59% Correctional Treatment

Feb-22
GEO REENTRY GROUP/ COMMUNITY ALTERNATIVES OF EL PASO COUNTY (CAE)

Total SFY22 Contract

4,696,634.26$            
TOTAL YTD
Expenditure

% Contract
Expended

Residential 4,288,472.60$            (1,954,159.16)$        41.61%
Non-Residential 115,294.38$               (79,768.50)$             1.70%
Correctional Treatment 158,500.00$               (125,675.00)$           2.68%
Facility Payment 134,367.28$               (67,183.64)$             1.43%

Total YTD Expenditure (2,226,786.30)$        47.41%

Percent Actual Expended
Expected YTD Per Contract 66.67%
Percent Under/Over (-) 19.25%

Total Balance in Contract 2,469,847.96$         

Expected YTD Expenditures Per 
Contract

Actual YTD 
Expenditure

Actual YTD $                  
Under / (Over)   

Against Expected

 % Under /     
Over (-) 
against 

expected 
2,858,981.73$  1,954,159.16$             904,822.57$            31.65% Inmate Housing

76,862.92$  79,768.50$                   (2,905.58)$               -3.78% Non-Residential
105,666.67$  125,675.00$                 (20,008.33)$             -18.94% Correctional Treatment

03/10/2022

25



Community Corrections Board   

Agenda Item Summary  

Agenda Item Title:  Unauthorized Absence Reports 

Agenda Date:  March 15, 2022 

Agenda Item Number: 7-b

Presenter:  Angel Medina, Community Corrections Program Manager 

Information: X  

Endorsement:   

Background Information: 

Pursuant to Article II of the El Paso County Community Corrections Board (CCB) By-
Laws and section 4a of Colorado Revised Statute 17-27-103, as amended, local 
community corrections boards are responsible for making assessments on the number of 
offenders who have an unauthorized absence from custody.  The data is based on reports 
prepared by community corrections program administrators pursuant to Section 11 of the 
Colorado Revised Statute 17-27-104. 

The attached Unauthorized Absence Reports are for the month of February 2022. 

Recommended Motion: 

N/A 

26



CCI TERMINATIONS – February 2022

Agenda 7b

RESIDENTIAL TERMINATIONS
Negative Terminations 17

Escape 12
House/Technical Violations 4
Committed New Crime 1

Positive Terminations 19
Successful Program Completion 15
Successful Completion of Treatment 4

Neutral Terminations 10
*Transfer to Intensive Residential Treatment (IRT) 6
*Transfer to other Community Corrections Program 1
*Reject After Accept 3

Grand Total 46

COMMISSIONERS:
STAN VANDERWERF (CHAIR)
CAMI BREMER (VICE-CHAIR)

HOLLY WILLIAMS
CARRIE GEITNER

LONGINOS GONZALEZ, JR.

NON-RESIDENTIAL TERMINATIONS
Count of 

Termination Reason %
Negative Terminations 1

Escape 1 9.09%
Neutral Terminations 3

*Technical Violation (punitive) 3 27.27%
Positive Terminations 1

Successful Non-Residential Completion 7 63.64%
Grand Total 5 100%

27



CAE TERMINATIONS – February 2022

Agenda 7b

RESIDENTIAL TERMINATIONS
Negative Terminations  16

Escape 11

House/Technical Violations 4

New Crime 1
Neutral Terminations 2

*Reject After Accept 1

*Transfer to Intensive Residential Treatment (IRT) 1
Positive Terminations 16

Successful Program Completion 16

Grand Total 34

NON‐RESIDENTIAL TERMINATIONS
Count of Termination 

Reason %
Negative Terminations 2
Committed New Crime 1 20%
Escape 1 20%
Neutral Terminations 2
*Returned to Residential Status (non‐
punitive) 2 40%
Positive Terminations 1
Successful Non‐Residential Completion 1 20%
Grand Total 5 100%

4th Judicial District

28



Community Corrections Board   

Agenda Item Summary  

Agenda Item Title:  Staff Report  

Agenda Date:  March 15, 2022 

Agenda Item Number: 7-c

Presenter:  Angel Medina, Community Corrections Program Manager 

Information:   X  

Endorsement:   

Background Information: 

Staff to provide insight and information on various upcoming events, activities, and/or 
information otherwise not specifically covered as a separate agenda item.  Topics covered 
under this agenda item will generally consist of the following: 

• Upcoming events impacting community corrections services
• Notable activities El Paso County (EPC) staff members are involved in and/or

pursuing
• Information not otherwise captured as a separate Community Corrections

Board agenda item

1. Beginning April 1, 2022, EPC Community Corrections will resume the normal
screening process regarding Out-of-District referrals that were placed on hold
since December 1st, 2021.

2. Pursuant to SB 21-271, Bill was the product of the Sentencing Task Force of the
Colorado Commission on Criminal and Juvenile Justice (CCJJ) pursuant to the
written directive of Governor Jared Polis by letter to the CJJJ June 24, 2020.

• Primary objectives of the misdemeanor reform bill:

o Create new classifications and sentencing ranges – required a review
of more than 1,100 crimes.

o Balance reduction in presumptive ranges with certainty in sentencing
o Eliminate or consolidate redundant offenses.
o Seek rehabilitation as a goal and reduce recidivism.
o Provide restoration and healing for victims and survivors of crime.
o Provide effective and consistent treatment options.

29



o Promote accountability and responsibility for actions.
o Reserve incarceration and detention for the most serious cases.
o Delay effective date until March 1, 2022, to allow for administrative

modifications, training, and corrections or revisions.

3. EPC attended a meeting where Probation announced they are looking to create a
liaison position that directly supervises clients sentenced to Community
Corrections.

30


	Meeting was adjourned at 1:45 p.m.
	Daniel Huddleston
	Community Corrections Specialist



